Village of Lemont
Planning and Zoning Commission
Special Meeting of July 10, 2019

A special meeting of the Planning and Zoning Corsiais for the Village of Lemont was held at
6:30 p.m. on Wednesday, July 10, 2019 in the seflond Board Room of the Village Hall, 418
Main Street, Lemont, lllinois.

CALL TO ORDER

A. Pledge of Allegiance

Chairman Spinelli called the meeting to order 876.m. He then led the Pledge of
Allegiance.

B. Verify Quorum

Upon roll call the following were:
Present: Cunningham, McGleam, O’Connor, Zolecgin8&lli
Absent: Glomp and Plahm

Community Development Director Mark Herman was gisssent.

C. Approval of Minutes — June 19, 2019 Special Meeting

Commissioner McGleam made a motion, seconded byn@issioner Zolecki to
approve the minutes from the June 19, 2019 spewmating with no changes. A
voice vote was taken:

Ayes: All

Nays: None

Motion passed

CHAIRMAN’'S COMMENTS

Chairman Spinelli welcomed the audience to the mgetHe then asked everyone in
the audience to stand and raise his/her right hatelthen administered the oath.

PUBLIC HEARINGS

A. 19-12 QUARRY PUB & GRILL SPECIAL USE PERMIT WITH
VARIATIONS FOR OUTDOOR DINING AND SIGN VARIATION

Chairman Spinelli called for a motion to open tlubl hearing.

Commissioner McGleam made a motion, seconded byn@ssioner Cunningham to
open the public hearing for Case 19-12. A voiceweas taken:



Ayes: All
Nays: None
Motion passed

Mark Herman, Community Development Manager, sagdstibject property is 1015
State Street, Quarry Pub & Grill. He then showe@erial view of the property.
This is the fifth location for Quarry Pub & Grilln 1999, the Village Board did
approve variations for a patio, fence and dinirepan the front yard along with a
special use for the outdoor dining. Outdoor dingg special use when it is on
private property with a seating capacity of 10 @rea The proposal is about for 60
people which will consist of 15 tables with fouradable.

He showed a drawing that was submitted by the egmliwhich shows the outdoor
dining in the front of the building. The dimenssofmom the drawing were put on the
ulta survey by staff. The property to the nortd anuth of the subject property has
B-3 zoning. The property located across the stsegicemetery. The outdoor dining
is located in the front of the subject property ethis away from the residential
property to the east.

Mr. Herman stated with locating the outdoor diniaghe front of the building, it

does provide a buffer and helps minimize any nweameated by the noise, however
it does create the need for variations. Patieshat allowed in the front yard and
there is a 20 yard setback. The patio is setbédkdt from the right-of-way (ROW)
line. There is also a maximum lot coverage of 80%e B-3. This property is
already nonconforming with a lot coverage of 89% e patio would increase the
lot coverage to a little over 91%. The fencingudtde located in the rear and/or
side yard and this fence is located in the frontlyaHe then listed some other
properties located on State Street that have fgrather in the front or side yard.

The applicant is also requesting a special usadditional signing on the building.
The sign that is currently there is at the maximafii2 square feet. In the code the
maximum signage in the B-3 district is one squard bf signage for every one foot
of building frontage with a maximum of 72 squaretfeThe building frontage based
on the ulta survey is 154 %2 feet. The proposedsigmage is the reverse channel
letters that say Food, Sports and Entertainmehey &re 24 inches tall and would be
42 feet wide so it would be an additional 84 squdeet for a total of 156 square feet
of signage. This is a relatively large building osingle tenant.

Mr. Herman said parking in the code is based orsitteeof the building. By adding
the outdoor dining the seating capacity does irsgekring the summer. The
applicant has a formal shared parking arrangemehttiae office building to the

north. Quarry Pub & Grill can have access to tlking at the office building after 5
p.m. There is soon supposed to be a formal agmeenith Lemon Tree to the south
also. Staff will follow-up with these agreemeriisf feel with the agreements there is
adequate parking.



In regards to the Standards for a Special Usd, wtaft through them. The
application does meet the applicable standarde Iddation for the outdoor dining
area in the front yard is considerate of the regideneighbors. The design elements
of the fencing and stone pillars does make it &tstilly pleasing. He then went
through the Standards for Variations.

Mr. Herman stated that staff does recommend appvatiaconditions related to the
special use. He read through the conditions tiealisted in staff’s report.

Chairman Spinelli asked for staff to go throughdinawings that were provided in
staff's packet.

Mr. Herman went through and explained which drawingre from the 1999
approval and which drawing was for the current imppbn. The reason why he
provided the 1999 drawing was to show what theagél Board at that time was
comfortable with, however, it was never constructed

Chairman Spinelli asked if the patio was 16 feetrfithe ROW and where is the
fence going to be.

Mr. Herman said it would be 16 feet from the ROWhe fence is also at the 16 feet.
Chairman Spinelli stated he would want nothing ntbeam 15 feet from the ROW.
Since an architect did not do the drawing he isigoo give a little bit of a buffer.

He appreciates the information from 1999, but ihs different applicant.

Mr. Herman said a variation should run with thegandy so there should be some
acknowledgement. This is a different request haneand the dimensions are
different.

Chairman Spinelli asked if there were guidelingssidomitting a professional
drawing. There is no reference to property lines ariances are being requested off
a landscape plan.

Mr. Herman stated he is not aware of any languagdlee UDO regarding that a
design professional needs to submit drawings.

Commissioner McGleam asked if they would need &epsional drawing for permit.
Mr. Herman said he does not believe so.

Chairman Spinelli asked if the Village requiresaarbuilt survey to prove that they
put it in according to permit.

Mr. Herman stated he would need to verify that.



Chairman Spinelli asked what the distance wasrfarking outside of a building
from the Department of Health.

Mr. Herman said he believes it is 15 feet.

Chairman Spinelli stated that will need to be adsked if this moves forward. There
is a portable ashtray that is near the door cugrent

Mr. Herman said signage can be added.
Commissioner McGleam clarified which plan they weraking their decision on.

Mr. Herman stated it should be clarified that ipepved it is based on substantial
compliance of that document.

Chairman Spinelli asked if the gate that is shownh& north side was required for
fire code.

Mr. Herman said staff did not run it pass the Bepartment, but it is something staff
can do.

Chairman Spinelli stated if it is not required thieshould be eliminated. Patrons can
try and use that area as another area to smoke.

Chairman Spinelli asked where the gate was lodatget into the area.

Mr. Herman said there would be an ingress/egreéegiie building but did also show
where a gate will be located.

Chairman Spinelli stated the gate should be lodt@u the inside.

Commissioner McGleam asked if staff knew what thgthvof the landscaping and
fence were.

Mr. Herman said the landscape would be on the dritsi the fence. The 16 feet
would be to the fence.

Commissioner McGleam asked if he knew the layoutHe stone piers.

Mr. Herman stated he did not know, but this wascammendation from staff based
on what was approved from 1999.

Chairman Spinelli asked what the boxed area wéseipatio.

Mr. Herman said it is for playing bags.



Chairman Spinelli asked if this was going to bearete or pavers.
Mr. Herman stated that would be a question forajmglicant.

Chairman Spinelli asked if there were any furtheesiions from the Commission for
staff. None responded. He then asked the applioaadome forward.

Applicant Presentation

Christopher Reum said he was present this evenmBdbert Taft, applicant, who
could not be present this evening. In regardshether it is concrete or pavers they
have been working with the landscapers to findvehat will match better with the
overall landscaping plan. If there is somethirguised they will do whichever is
required.

Chairman Spinelli stated there is no requirementdas it has to be some type of
hardscape and it must be ADA accessible.

Mr. Reum said they put the gates in for emergenspgses and they will be
lockable. There will be no entrance to the patitess you go through the building.
The gates are only for emergency purposes.

Chairman Spinelli clarified that people do not hageess to the patio as they come
out of the building. He asked if that is why theged separate modification for the
garage door.

Mr. Reum stated he believes that is a separatenmemdation because it is attached
to the building. The original plan will have a mamor while they go through the
permit use. He believes that one has to go throhgklealth Department.
Chairman Spinelli said the smoking area will neety¢ adjusted. If the Village
Board does approve this he does not want to seéhpisshtrays moved. There
needs to be signs or the pavement marked.

Commissioner Zolecki asked what the landscape mateas in front of the bean bag
area.

Mr. Reum stated he is not sure.
Commissioner Zolecki asked if there was going t@Imeax occupancy.
Mr. Herman said yes and that would be based ofirtheode.

Chairman Spinelli asked what time does the kitath@nently close.



Mr. Reum stated between 10 p.m. and 11 p.m. Thgktrhave a late night menu on
certain nights come the fall, but they are stilrliing on that.

Chairman Spinelli asked if the applicant had retpeethe midnight closing.

Mr. Reum said they have patios at other locatibas do not have hours of operation.
Commissioner Cunningham stated that was from thadri Commission.

Chairman Spinelli asked if there were any furtheesiions from the Commission.
None responded. He then asked if there was angahe audience that wanted to

speak in regards to this public hearing.

Public Comment

Bruce Taylor said his son lives directly behind skhiject property and he lives
across the street from him. He understands tegtdb not want them smoking out
front, but otherwise they will go to the side oétbuilding. They will be drinking

and can be very loud. It is extremely loud whesytdump all the bottles into the
dumpsters. His son has a little baby, so thexaneerned about the noise that would
be generated from outside entertainment. He isaxoied that there will be more
garbage with the outside dining. His son getd aflgarbage that blows into his

yard. He asked if they were going to allow eniarteent outside. When there are
bands downtown Lemont, the sound carries all the wpato where he lives.

Mr. Herman stated they do have live entertainmesitlie the building. It was never
proposed to staff that they wanted to do live ¢atement outside of the building. As
a condition of approval, which the Planning Commissan change or amend, if
they were to consider it they would not be allou@dhiave a band out there by right.
The purpose of staff's recommendation was if timtgnded to do that, they could
only do that with Village approval. That way theguld have information on what
was being done.

Mr. Taylor asked if they are planning on having amysic, possibly through
speakers, playing out there.

Mr. Reum stated there is already two speakersdrufdaying music and they don’t
plan on adding any more.

Ed Andrysiak said he owns the property at 1020 @itesx. He does not want to see
the business fail because it will not help his prtyvalue and it doesn’t help the
Village with sales taxes. He understands there@neerns with smoking and
landscape issues, but that is up to the Commig¢siamork out. He just wanted to
state that he is not opposed to their applicatida.was concerned about parking but
they seem to have figured that out. If you lookibd Lemon Tree there is a grass



strip and that is an alley. He thinks it wouldrbee if they could connect to that alley
and have an additional exit to Keepataw Drive.

Chairman Spinelli asked if there was anyone elaewlanted to speak in regards to
this public hearing. None responded. He thereddtr a motion to close the public
hearing.

Commissioner McGleam made a motion, seconded byn@issioner O’Connor to
close the public hearing for Case 19-12. A voiotewvas taken:

Ayes: All

Nays: None

Motion passed

Plan Commission Discussion

Chairman Spinelli stated he objects to openingrupliey behind the property. He
does not believe that the subject property hasialoged dumpster. He asked staff if
this was something that they can ask the applicaptovide since they are coming in
asking for a special use.

Mr. Herman said that they could, especially sitezd has been concern brought up
by the neighbor about garbage. It also helps ntakere aesthetically pleasing.

Chairman Spinelli stated either a trash encloshoeilsl be provide or covers for the
dumpsters that they have on site. He said sommess itee would like to add for the
motion that is made would be a 15 foot setback floenROW line, somehow address
the smoking restricted area, the fence gate shoswuidAbe panic push bars for

exiting only, and no outdoor entertainment.

Commissioner O’Connor agreed with the outdoor ¢atement. He does not believe
that there will be enough room.

Commissioner Zolecki said the bean bags shoule&teicted to a certain time
because that game can get loud. It might have &xbluded or limited to a certain
time.

Chairman Spinelli stated if it is played at nighen there might have to be lighting.
He asked staff how that would be policed if thestmet it.

Mr. Herman said it would be through code enforceméie suggested that staff will
look into it and make sure code enforcement takelaat the dumpsters.

Chairman Spinelli asked if there were any talksutloaitdoor lighting.

Mr. Herman stated he did not talk about outdoditlitg with the applicant.



Mr. Reum said they would just have low voltage amnbiighting.

Chairman Spinelli asked if any of the Commissiortexrd any further comments or
guestions. None responded. He then called footéomfor recommendation.

Plan Commission Recommendation

Commissioner McGleam made a motion, seconded byn@issioner O’Connor to

recommend to the Mayor and Board of Trustees agpaivCase 19-12 — Quarry Pub

& Grill Special Use Permit with Variations for Owtdr Dining and Sign Variation

with the following conditions for the Special Usedavariations for Outdoor Dining

Area:

1. The outdoor dining area shall close no later tHaB@ a.m.

2. Require a 15 foot setback from the right-of-wa ltn the proposed fencing.

3. Enforce the building code requirements for no smgkvithin 15 feet of the
building.

4. The outdoor fence gates are for egress only aratoess to the patio area other
than from the inside of the building.

5. No live entertainment.

6. No bean bag play after 10 p.m.

7. All portions of the outdoor dining area shall bébsek at least 5 feet from any
property line, as stated for patios in the accgsstucture table.

8. A solid landscape buffer shall be planted alongféinee of the outdoor dining
area.

9. The fence wall shall have masonry pillars as posts.

A roll call vote was taken:

Ayes: McGleam, O’Connor, Cunningham, Zolecki, &lfin

Nays: None

Motion passed

Findings of Fact

Commissioner Cunningham made a motion, second€bhbymissioner McGleam to
authorize the Chairman to approve the Findingsaat For Case 19-12 as prepared by
staff. A voice vote was taken:

Ayes: All

Nays: None

Motion passed

ACTION ITEMSS

A. 18-13 FINAL PLAT OF SUBDIVISION FOR 16622 W. 127" STREET
(LOMAS SUBDIVISION)

Mr. Herman said the subject property is locatedhensouthwest corner of 127
Street and Rolling Meadows Drive. Last year thikage approved a preliminary plat



of subdivision for a two lot subdivision on the gdi property. The property had
been rezoned from B-3 to R-4 Single Family. Hentbleowed the Final Plat of
Subdivision submitted by the applicant. The agpitadid try and comply with the
recommendations that were made.

The lot sizes are greater than what is requiredh®iR-4 District. In regards to
having a greater setback for Lot 1 off of TStreet, they did increase it to 40 feet.
He then reviewed the conditions that were placethfPlanning Commission at the
preliminary hearing. Staff feels the Final Plabstantially conforms to the
Preliminary Plat and recommends approval of thalFtat with the conditions listed
in staff’s report.

Chairman Spinelli stated the restriction for noieatar access to 17Street is not
shown anywhere on the subdivision plat and thdtnekd to be added to the plat.
The applicant’s engineer needs to update theimpiredry engineering drawings to
show the 40 foot setback from 12%treet. He concurs with staff that the Final Plat
does conform to the Preliminary Plat. He then dskany of the other
Commissioners had any comments or questions. Nmponded. He then called for
a motion for recommendation.

Plan Commission Recommendation

Commissioner Zolecki made a motion, seconded byr@iseion McGleam to

recommend to the Mayor and Board of Trustees apahiCase 18-13 Final Plat of

Subdivision for 16622 W. 187Street (Lomas Subdivision) with the following

conditions:

1. Address planning comments and meet the requirenoséite UDO at site
development permit.

2. Address any remaining comments forthcoming fromtlege Engineer and
Village Arborist.

3. Identify a non-access easement along™MSfreet prior to final approval.

4. Update the preliminary engineering drawings to skloev40 foot setback from
127" Street.

A roll call vote was taken:

Ayes: Zolecki, McGleam, O’Connor, Cunningham, &lfin

Nays: None

Motion passed

GENERAL DISCUSSION

Chairman Spinelli asked if there were any updates the Village Board in regards
to cases that they have heard.

Mr. Herman said this upcoming Monday, at the Corteribf the Whole, they will be
talking about all the cases from June Special MgetiThe only thing that might get



pushed back is the UDO amendments, but they wi ta update the FIRM Map for
DuPage County.

VI.  AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION
None
VIl.  ADJOURMENT
Chairman Spinelli called for a motion to adjoure theeting.
Commissioner McGleam made a motion, seconded byn@ssioner Cunningham to
adjourn the meeting. A voice vote was taken:
Ayes: All

Nays: None
Motion passed

Minutes prepared by Peggy Halper

10



